THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66, 991

**FILED**

SID J. WHITE

JUL 20 1985

WILLIAM D. CHRISTOPHER,

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

CLERK, SUPREME COURT  
By *[Signature]*  
Chief Deputy Clerk

On Appeal From the Circuit Court of the  
Twentieth Judicial Circuit in and for Collier County, Florida

APPELLANT'S INITIAL BRIEF

THOMAS R. BOLF, ESQ.  
LOUISE E. TUDZAROV, ESQ.  
RUDEN, BARNETT, McCLOSKEY,  
SCHUSTER & RUSSELL, P.A.  
Attorneys for Appellant  
One Corporate Plaza - PH-B  
110 E. Broward Blvd.  
Post Office Box 1900  
Fort Lauderdale, Fl 33302  
(305)764-6660; Mia 944-3283

THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 66, 991

WILLIAM D. CHRISTOPHER,

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant, WILLIAM D. CHRISTOPHER, will be referred to as Appellant, Defendant, or Christopher.

Appellee, STATE OF FLORIDA, will be referred to as State or Appellee.

1. The Appellant, WILLIAM D. CHRISTOPHER, respectfully requests this Court take judicial notice of the Record on Appeal in Appellant's initial appeal from his conviction, and in Appellant's appeal from the denial of his first Rule 3.850 motion.

2. The Appellate Numbers therein are Case No. 55698 and Case No. 62183, respectively.

3. Contained in those records are certain documents of particular relevance to this appeal; these documents are contained in the appendix to this brief, and will be referred to as "App. \_\_\_, at \_\_\_."



## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

For a complete statement of the facts in this cause, the court is directed to the records referenced above. The facts particularly relevant to this appeal are hereinafter set forth.

In 1977, Appellant was arrested in Memphis, Tennessee concerning the deaths of George Ahern and Bertha Skillin. Norma Sands, the Appellant's daughter, and Pete and Pam Scott, Appellant's half brother and half sister, were taken into custody along with the Appellant. App. C at 3-4. Collier County detectives interrogated the Appellant in Memphis on September 22, 1977. App. C, at 8, 34-57. The Interrogation occurred in three separate segments. Id. at 34-57. In the first, the detectives illicited from Appellant a "murder-suicide" explanation of the murders, wherein Ahern had murdered Skillin, and then had committed suicide. Id. at 38. This first segment was tape recorded, id., and terminates upon Appellant's request that the tape recorder be turned off. Id. at 40-52. During this first segment, Appellant made several attempts to terminate the interrogation. App. D at 46-47, 51-52. These unavailing attempts to terminate the interrogation yielded the Miranda issue presented in the instant 3.850 motion.

The interrogation's second segment occurred off tape. Id. at 40-45. It begins with Appellant's questions to the police as to their intended charges against his daughter Norma, and against the Scotts. Id. Prior to his

confession, Appellant expressed anxiety concerning his daughter's involvement in the murder investigation. App. D at 39-45. Based on his concern for his family, Appellant then "confessed" to the murders of Skillin and Ahern. App. D at "A-206".

The interrogation's third and final segment occurred with the tape recorder turned on once again. App. D at "A-192"- "A-207" (Appellant's 10:25 statement). Appellant repeated the "confession" he had earlier given off-tape. The police's use of Appellant's concern for his family in a coercive manner during the interrogation presents constitutional concerns also addressed in the instant 3.850 motion.

Appellant was eventually returned to Collier County, and various pre-trial proceedings were had. Of particular importance is the hearing on the motion to suppress Appellant's confession. App. C. During this hearing, the events surrounding the above-referenced interrogation were retold by the police officers present at the interrogation. Id. at 2-57. After the State rested, Appellant's counsel considered having the Appellant testify at the hearing. Id. at 58. Counsel was unclear as to the admissibility of Appellant's suppression hearing testimony at a later trial, and requested the Court rule on that issue. Id. See also R. 17-18 (Affidavit of Robert G. Hines, Counsel for Appellant at the suppression hearing). The Court would not rule on the issue, and stated that the admissibility of the suppression hearing testimony

"for any purpose" would be determined later at trial. Id. (emphasis supplied).

Faced with this unresolved question, Appellant, upon advice of counsel, decided not to testify at the suppression hearing. Id. at 59-60. See also R. 17-18 (Affidavit of Robert G. Hines). As a result, no defense testimony was presented at the suppression hearing, id., and the Court eventually denied the motion to suppress, ruling that the confession would be admissible at trial. Id. at 78. The confessions were introduced at trial over the Appellant's objections. Christopher v. State, 407 So.2d 198, 200-201 (Fla. 1981), cert. denied, 456 U.S. 910 (1982) ("Christopher I"). The procedural propriety of the confession suppression hearing, and the ineffectiveness of Appellant's counsel therein, yields the primary bases for the instant 3.850 motion.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The essence of the instant Rule 3.850 motion is the effective preclusion of the Appellant from testifying at the hearing to suppress his "confession", caused by (1) the failure of the trial court to rule on the issue of the admissibility of the confession suppression hearing testimony at a later trial; and (2) the misapprehension of the law by Appellant's trial counsel concerning the admissibility of the suppression hearing testimony at a later trial. R. 3-10. App. F. As such, this Statement of the Case will focus upon the procedural history of the issues of ineffective assistance of counsel, and the involuntariness of Appellant's confession.

The Florida trial court denied defense counsel's pre-trial motion to suppress Appellant's confession. App. C. Appellant's second trial resulted in a jury verdict on August 18, 1978, finding Appellant guilty of both counts of first degree murder. Christopher I, 407 So.2d at 199-200. The Florida trial court adjudicated Appellant guilty on both counts, and imposed a sentence of death. Id.

A timely direct appeal was taken to the Florida Supreme Court, which denied Appellate relief, affirming Appellant's conviction and sentence December 10, 1981. Christopher I, 407 So.2d 198 (Fla. 1981). Appellant's Petition for Certiorari to the United States Supreme Court from this initial

decision of the Florida Supreme Court was denied March 29, 1982. 456 U.S. 910 (1982). Pursuant to Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, Rule 3.850, Appellant then moved the Florida trial court for post-conviction relief. App. A (First Amended Motion to Vacate, Set Aside, or Correct Sentence). This relief was summarily denied, without evidentiary hearing, App. B (Supplemental Order dated June 10, 1982), and an appeal to the Florida Supreme Court followed. On June 23, 1982, the Florida Supreme Court denied Appellant's post-conviction relief; denied leave to amend his Rule 3.850 pleading; and denied leave to file a writ of coram nobis. Christopher v. State, 416 So.2d 450 (Fla. 1982) ("Christopher II").

The undersigned firm noticed an appearance in this case on September 22, 1984, pursuant to a request to volunteer its services by the Florida Bar Committee for Representation of Death Sentenced Inmates in Collateral Proceedings. R.1.

On January 17, 1985, Appellant filed his Second Rule 3.850 Motion. R. 2-18, App. F. The Appellant filed a supporting Memorandum of Law on February 6, 1985. R. 22-36. On February 6, 1985, the State, sua sponte, filed a combined response and memorandum of law to the Rule 3.850 motion. R. 37-59. On March 11, 1985, a non-evidentiary hearing on Appellant's Rule 3.850 motion was held, R. 64, 69-103; the trial court orally denied the motion at the conclusion of the hearing, R. 102, and entered its written order of denial

on April 4, 1985. R. 65-66, App. E. An amended notice of appeal was timely filed from this decision. R. 67.

A. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel Claims

Appellant asserted ineffective assistance of counsel in his original Rule 3.850 Motion. Said claims were denied in part because of the failure to adequately plead the claims, and thus these claims were not fully decided on the merits. App. B, at 1-2. See also pp. 27-30, infra. On appeal, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed the denial, including the ineffective assistance of counsel claim, and ruled that the 3.850 allegations concerning ineffective counsel were inadequate. Christopher II, 416 So.2d at 453. The first Rule 3.850 Motion did not assert the lack of knowledge concerning the law of the admissibility of suppression hearing testimony as a grounds for ineffective assistance of counsel. App. A, at 9-10.

B. Procedural Propriety of Confession Suppression Hearing.

The Appellant, in his direct appeal to the Florida Supreme Court, challenged the substantive conclusion that his confession was voluntary; the Court rejected this contention. Christopher I, 407 So.2d at 200-201. However, the procedural propriety of the confession suppression hearing, given that the Appellant was effectively precluded from testifying at the hearing, was not raised. Christopher I, 407 So.2d 198. Moreover, the procedural

inadequacies of the confession suppression hearing were not raised in the original 3.850 motion. App. A.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. WHETHER THE PROCEDURAL PROPRIETY OF THE CONFESSION SUPPRESSION HEARING IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED BY RULE 3.850'S PROVISIONS CONCERNING (1) FAILURE TO ASSERT NEW AND DIFFERENT GROUNDS, OR (2) ISSUES DIRECTLY APPEALABLE.

The procedural deficiencies in appellant's confession suppression hearing have not been previously asserted in any motion or appeal. These grounds thus constitute new and different grounds, and are not barred by Rule 3.850's provision that the grounds previously asserted in a 3.850 motion, and decided on their merits, cannot be asserted in a later 3.850 motion.

Because the deficiencies at the confession suppression hearing unconstitutionally infringed upon appellant's constitutional rights against self incrimination, the error complained of constitutes a fundamental error. The procedural bar against permitting appealable issues to be asserted in a 3.850 motion is thus inapplicable.

II. WHETHER THE INSTANT 3.850 MOTION CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF THE PROCEDURE GOVERNED BY THE RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

The "abuse" bar to the consideration of the merits of Rule 3.850 motions should be applied only in extraordinary situations. Given the finality of the instant sentence, this procedural bar should indeed be applied sparingly.

The appellant was unaware of the availability of the grounds asserted in the present 3.850 motion, and was unaware of the legal significance of the impropriety surrounding his confession suppression hearing. The appellant therefore did not deliberately withhold these claims from his previous 3.850 motion, nor was the appellant inexcusably neglectful in failing to assert them in the prior motion. Because of the significant impact the denial of this motion will have upon the appellant's attempts to obtain relief from his death sentence, the trial court should exercise its discretion and consider the instant motion.

III. WHETHER THE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL CLAIM WAS DECIDED ON THE MERITS IN THE ORIGINAL 3.850 MOTION.

Numerous grounds in support of appellant's ineffective assistance of counsel claim were asserted in his first 3.850 motion. While some of these grounds were purportedly decided on their merits by the trial court, many of the grounds were determined to be inadequately alleged, and thus were not decided on their merits.

IV. WHETHER AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING NEED BE HELD ON THE ABUSE ISSUE.

The Court below concluded, without evidentiary hearing, that appellant abused the 3.850 procedures. The appellant rebutted a claim of "abuse" by asserting that the instant grounds were wholly unknown to the appellant at the time of filing the original 3.850 motion. Under such circumstances, the appellant could not have deliberately withheld these grounds from the prior



motion. Nor do the facts ascertained to date support a finding that the appellant was inexcusably neglectful in not discovering and asserting these grounds in his earlier motion. Simply put, the trial court determined that as a matter of fact the appellant had abused the 3.850 process. This conclusion, however, was reached without the benefit of any factual development concerning (1) whether the appellant knew of these grounds, and purposefully did not assert these grounds when he filed his first 3.850 motion or (2) whether the appellant was inexcusable neglectful in not recognizing and asserting these grounds previously. As Federal case law has established, unless an appellant has no chance of rebutting the "abuse" claim, he should be given an opportunity to present evidence to contradict the claim. Before the trial court decides that the merits of appellant's claim should not be considered, it should determine whether in fact the appellant did abuse the 3.850 procedure.

V. WHETHER THE ABUSE PROVISIONS OF RULE 3.850, WHICH BECAME EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1985, SHOULD BE RETROACTIVELY APPLIED TO RULE 3.850 PROCEEDINGS INSTITUTED PRIOR TO 1985.

The instant "abuse" amendment immediately foreclosed the rights of prisoners to assert previously unasserted grounds for 3.850 relief. The amendment is therefore akin to an amendment shortening a statute of limitations period, without providing a savings clause. Such amendments, although concerning a "procedural" matter, have consistently been held by the

Florida Supreme Court to be strictly prospective unless a contrary intent is manifestation intent the act. The instant amendment contains no such manifest intent of its intended retroactivity; indeed, another of the amendments to Rule 3.850 includes, through a savings clause, an indication that it is to be retroactively applied. Such an indication is conspicuously absent from the "abuse" amendment. The amendment should therefore be applied prospectively only.

#### ANALYSIS OF APPEALED ORDER

Rule 3.850, Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, provides in part:

A second or successive motion may be dismissed if the judge finds that it fails to allege new or different grounds for relief and the prior determination was on the merits or, if new and different grounds are alleged, the judge finds that the failure of the movant or his attorney to assert those grounds in a prior motion constituted an abuse of the procedure governed by these rules.

The Order appealed from expressly states that the Appellant's motion was denied strictly for procedural reasons; the merits of the instant motion were not reached. R. 65-66, App. E. The procedural bars enunciated by the Court were (1) an abusive fragmentation of issues; and (2) a failure to allege new or different grounds for relief. Id. Immediately, the inherent contradiction in the Court's order becomes apparent. See, e.g., Potts v. Zant, 638 F.2d 727, 739 (5th Cir.), cert. denied, 454 U.S. 877 (1981). Rule 3.850 is clear: a successive motion may be dismissed if (1) no new grounds for relief are

alleged and the prior determination was on the merits; or (2) the movant failed to assert new and different grounds in a prior motion. The Court herein has found both a fragmentation of the issues (i.e. raising new grounds which should have been previously raised) and the failure to raise new grounds. Because these findings are mutually exclusive and inherently inconsistent, they are suspect. Moreover, as discussed below, neither conclusion is supported by the record. Finally, the instant Order nowhere addresses Appellant's claim that the suppression hearing was procedurally defective. R. 65-66, App. E.

Because the lower court's denial of the instant 3.850 motion was based exclusively on procedural bases, the merits of Appellant's asserted grounds for relief are addressed herein only to the extent that the merits impact on the propriety of the lower court's order. The merits of Appellant's claims are addressed in greater detail in his Memorandum of Law in support of the present 3.850 motion, R. 22-36, and in the transcript of the hearing held below. R. 69-103. If, however, this Court deems it necessary to consider the merits of Appellant's claim, Appellant requests an opportunity to fully brief the issues for this Court to enable a proper disposition of the claims.

## ARGUMENT

ISSUE I: WHETHER THE PROCEDURAL PROPRIETY OF THE CONFESSION SUPPRESSION HEARING IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED BY RULE 3.850'S PROVISIONS CONCERNING (1) FAILURE TO ASSERT NEW AND DIFFERENT GROUNDS, OR (2) ISSUES DIRECTLY APPEALABLE.

In Appellant's motion for relief from judgment (R. 2-11), the two bases for obtaining relief pursuant to Rule 3.850 were plainly spelled out: (1) the procedural deficiencies in the confession suppression hearing, *id.* at 3; and (2) the ineffective assistance of trial counsel at the confession suppression hearing, *id.* at 7. The procedural deficiencies of the hearing simply were not raised in the first 3.850 motion. App. A. Thus, the record baldly rebuts any assertion that the instant 3.850 motion fails to allege new and different grounds.

The trial court therefore incorrectly ruled that the present 3.850 motion was barred on the basis that no new grounds were asserted. Nor can the court's order be affirmed based on the alternative procedural bar that appealable issues may not be asserted in a 3.850 motion. Such a procedural bar is inapplicable as the error concerns Appellant's fundamental rights against self-incrimination.

At the confession suppression hearing, the Defendant and his counsel perceived a dilemma: (1) Christopher could testify at the hearing, and present evidence in opposition to the State's case; or (2) he could choose not to

testify, and forego presenting evidence in opposition to the State's case. If Christopher elected to testify, he would risk self-incrimination through the use of that testimony at the subsequent trial. If Christopher chose not to testify, he would risk the improper admission of an involuntary confession. Thus, Christopher was forced to choose between two constitutional rights. The State may not exact a constitutional right as the price for the exercise of another constitutional right.

As the United States Supreme Court has held:

A defendant is "compelled" to testify in support of a motion to suppress only in the sense that if he refrains from testifying he will have to forego a benefit, and testimony is not always involuntary as a matter of law simply because it is given to obtain a benefit. However, the assumption which underlies this reasoning is that the defendant has a choice: he may refuse to testify and give up the benefit. When this assumption is applied to a situation in which the "benefit" to be gained is that afforded by another provision of the Bill of Rights, an undeniable tension is created. Thus, in this case Garrett was obliged either to give up what he believed, with advice of counsel, to be a valid Fourth Amendment claim or, in legal effect, to waive his Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination. In these circumstances, we find it intolerable that one constitutional right should have to be surrendered to assert another.

Simmons v. United States, 390 U.S. 377, 393-94 (1968) (emphasis supplied). As in Simmons, Christopher was obliged either to give up what he believed, with advice of counsel, to be a valid Fifth Amendment claim against self-incrimination, or to assert that claim at the risk of making additional

potentially incriminating statements which could later be used against him. This is constitutionally impermissible.

The rights against self-incrimination are incontrovertibly fundamental rights. The United States Supreme Court stated in Miranda v. State of Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966):

We start here, as we did in Escobedo [v. Illinois], 378 U.S. 478 (1964)], with the premise that our holding is not an innovation in our jurisprudence, but is an application of principles long recognized and applied in other settings. We have undertaken a thorough re-examination of the Escobedo decision and the principles it announced, and we reaffirm it. That case was but an application of basic rights that are enshrined in our Constitution--that "No person \* \* \* shall be compelled in any criminal case to be a witness against himself," and that "the accused shall \* \* \* have the Assistance of Counsel" -- rights which were put in jeopardy in that case through official overbearing. These precious rights were fixed in our Constitution only after centuries of persecution and struggle. And in the words of Chief Justice Marshall, they were secured "for ages to come, and \* \* \* designed to approach immortality as nearly as human institutions can approach it," Cohens v. Commonwealth of Virginia, 6 Wheat. 264, 387, 5 L.Ed. 257 (1821).

Id. at 442. The privilege against self-incrimination is highly cherished, and should be protected with ardor.

Because the right against self-incrimination is fundamental, a violation of that right may be raised for the first time in a Rule 3.850 Motion, notwithstanding that it could have been, but was not, raised on direct appeal. See Nova v. State, 439 So.2d 255, 261 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983); Dozier v.

State, 361 So.2d 727 (Fla. 4th DCA 1978); O'Neal v. State, 308 So.2d 569 (Fla. 2d DCA 1975), overruled on other grounds, Roberts v. State, 320 So.2d 832 (Fla. 2d DCA 1975). See also Flowers v. State, 351 So.2d 387 (Fla. 1st DCA 1977).

The effective preclusion of the Defendant from testifying at his confession suppression hearing, and the concomitant impermissible violation of the Defendant's rights against self-incrimination, are grounds not previously raised in Appellant's 3.850 motion. The error alleged, however, is a fundamental error, as it concerns self-incrimination; the procedural bar to a 3.850 motion concerning issues which could have been appealed is not present. The only possible procedural bar remaining is abuse.

ISSUE II: WHETHER THE INSTANT 3.850 MOTION CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF THE PROCEDURE GOVERNED BY THE RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

The appealed order states that the Defendant abused Rule 3.850 by filing this second 3.850 motion; the merits of Defendant's contentions were therefore deemed not entitled to consideration by the court. R. 65-66. As stated in the 1984 committee note to Rule 3.850, the "abuse" provision is analogous to Rule 9(b) of 28 U.S.C.A. foll. § 2254; indeed, Rule 9(b) and the above-quoted section of Rule 3.850 are identical save for certain grammatical changes. Given the relatively few Florida cases concerning the new provision, Federal interpretations of Rule 9(b) should provide insightful analysis on what constitutes the "abuse" of post-conviction motions.

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