IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

WILLIAM D. CHRISTOPHER,

Appellant,

v. STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

CASE NO. 66,991

On Appeal from the Circuit Correction Of the Twentieth Judicial Circuit In and for Collier County, Florida

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

WILLIAM E. TAYLOR
Assistant Attorney General
1313 Tampa Street, Suite 804
Park Trammell Building
Tampa, Florida 33602
(813) 272-2670

OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE PROCEDURAL PROPRIETY OF THE CONFESSION SUPPRESSION HEARING IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED BY RULE 3.850'SPROVISIONS CONCERNING (1) FAILURE TO ASSERT NEW AND DIFFERENT GROUNDS, OR (2) ISSUES DIRECTLY APPEALABLE.

The appellant refers to deficiencies at the confession suppression hearing; however, there were no deficiencies. He was deprived of nothing through the actions of the state or the trial court, but chose not to testify. He originally raised the question of ineffective assistance of counsel in his first 3.850 motion; and what he presents now are not new grounds, but as the trial court noted in its order, merely a new twist or a new argument. The appellant states that his constitutional rights against self-incrimination have been infringed; however, that is not true since he in fact enjoyed the benefits of the right against self-incrimination. The appellant confuses a fundamental right with a fundamental error. Here, the only question that was properly before the trial court had to do with the issue of effective assistance of counsel.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE INSTANT 3.850 MOTION CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF THE PROCEDURE GOVERNED BY THE RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

The appellant argues that the "abuse" bar should be used sparingly and the appellant has no disagreement with that.

The appellee, however, will argue that since the appellant has had a succession of eminent attorneys at the appellate level, who have not been challenged on the grounds of ineffectiveness, he cannot, at this late date, claim that he was unaware of the availability of the present argument.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL CLAIM WAS DECIDED ON THE MERITS IN THE ORIGINAL 3.850 MOTION.

The appellee under this issue will argue that all of the grounds that were properly the subject of a 3.850 motion, and which had not previously been ruled upon by this Honorable Court, were in fact decided on the merits by the trial court when it reviewed the original 3.850 motion. While it is true that no testimony was heard at the original hearing, there was an extensive hearing after ominous pleadings and amended pleadings had been submitted by the appellant.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING NEED BE HELD ON THE ABUSE ISSUE.

The appellant under this issue claims that an evidentiary hearing needs to be held by the trial court as to the abuse issue alone. This is not necessary, since the record and the trial judge's order are quite clear and there would be nothing further to inquire into. The appellant cannot now claim that he was not given an opportunity to rebut the abuse issue since the pleadings previously filed before that court detailed the

state's argument and at the hearing concerning this matter before the trial court the present appellate counsel certainly had the opportunity to offer whatever argument, case authority, etc. existed for rebuttal purposes.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE ABUSE PROVISIONS OF RULE 3.850, WHICH BECAME EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1985, SHOULD BE RETROACTIVELY APPLIED TO RULE 3.850 PROCEEDINGS INSTITUTED PRIOR TO 1985.

The appellee herein, will argue that no rights of Mr. Christopher have been foreclosed if the amendment to Rule 3.850 is applied to him. More importantly, however, the appellee will argue that this Honorable Court need not reach the question of retroactivity in this case or hypothetical circumstances, since the concept of "abuse" existed long prior to the amendment, and the trial judge in his order denying the subsequent 3.850 motion specifically states that he also relied on cases that were extant prior to the amendment.

ARGUMENT

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE PROCEDURAL PROPRIETY OF THE CONFESSION SUPPRESSION HEARING IS PROCEDURALLY BARRED BY RULE 3.850'SPROVISIONS CONCERNING (1) FAILURE TO ASSERT NEW AND DIFFERENT GROUNDS, OR (2) ISSUES DIRECTLY APPEALABLE.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE INSTANT 3.850 MOTION CONSTITUTES AN ABUSE OF THE PROCEDURE GOVERNED BY THE RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

ISSUE III (as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL CLAIM WAS DECIDED ON THE MERITS IN THE ORIGINAL 3.850 MOTION.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING NEED BE HELD ON THE ABUSE ISSUE.

(as stated by the appellant)

WHETHER THE ABUSE PROVISIONS OF RULE 3.850, WHICH BECAME EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 1985, SHOULD BE RETROACTIVELY APPLIED TO RULE 3.850 PROCEEDINGS INSTITUTED PRIOR TO 1985.

The appellee asks leave of this Honorable Court to answer all of the issues together, thus being able to track the statements of the appellant, page by page, even when those statements refer to subsequent issues.

The appellee recognizes that a defendant is entitled to

zealous representation by his attorney, and the appellee further recognizes that nowhere is this more true than a capital case. However, this zealousness has lead to conclusions in the brief submitted by the appellant based on faulty premises.

The appellant at page seven of his brief claims that "because the deficiencies at the confession suppression hearing unconstitutionally infringed upon appellant's constitutional rights against self-incrimnation, the error complained of constitutes fundamental error." This is not accurate. ciencies that the appellant now refers to in such sweeping terms, were no more than tactical decisions during the time of trial. He was not deprived of any rights against selfincrimination since he, in fact, chose not to testity at the suppression hearing. He was not deprived of any right, either by the state of by the court, and tactical decisions have repeatedly been held not to constitute ineffective assistance of counsel unless irresponsible. See Stright v. Wainwright, 422 So.2d 827 (Fla. 1982); State v. Eby, 342 So.2d 1087 (Fla. 2 DCA 1977); Ferby v. State, 404 So.2d 407 (Fla. 5 DCA 1981); Armstrong v. State, 429 So.2d 287 (Fla. 1983).

Further, one must wonder at the good faith of this argument at the present time since, while the appellant did not testify at the suppression hearing, he did testify at his first trial, but chose not to testify at his second trial.

One must ask what would have occurred differently at trial had he testified at the suppression hearing. That is to say -

if he had testified at the suppression hearing, as to what he now claims he would have, there was certainly nothing that could have been used to impeach him at the first trial where he testified. On the other hand, if he had testified at the suppression hearing, it could not have been used against him at the second trial, since he did not testify during the second trial.

The appellee will argue that the defendant, rather than having been the victim of a bad tactical choice by his defense counsel, by not testifying at the suppression hearing, benefited thereby. An examination of the transcript of the hearing shows that the trial court, without the testimony of the appellant, was fully apprised of all of the arguments that have ever subsequently been presented to the various appellate The appellee would ask this Honorable Court to take specific notice of the appellant's exhibit "C" at A-118 and Two things become evident; first, that the defense at-A-119. torney was relying upon the proper case authority and further, that he was reluctant to have Christopher testify if his testimony could later be used for any purpose. The appellee will show later in this brief that indeed, had Christopher testified at the suppression hearing, his testimony could have been used for later impeachment purposes. The trial judge at that porition of the record notes, and the defense attorney agrees, that he was being asked for nothing more than an advisory opinion. Even if the trial court had given such an advisory

opinion, it would have been to the effect that the testimony could be used later for impeachment purposes, and it appears from the record that that is specifically what the defense attorney feared. The question of the voluntariness of his confession has been examined in minute detail both by the trial court, this Honorable Court, the Federal District Court for the Southern District of Florida and found to be without merit. Unless the appellant can now show that there was something that he would have testified to that would clearly have changed the outcome of the suppression hearing, or added a new question concerning the voluntariness for later appellate review, his argument that his trial attorney was ineffective is baseless.

The appellant at page eight of his brief states "the appellant was unaware of the availability of the grounds asserted in the present 3.850 motion . . . " It is important to note that in addition to trial counsel, the appellant has subsequently had three different appellate counsels before this Honorable Court in both the direct appeal and the denial of the 3.850 motion as well as the habeas corpus proceedings in the federal district court and the appeal to the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals. While these various appellate counsels have attacked trial counsel as being ineffective, there has never been a claim by any of them that the other appellate counsels have been ineffective. This means in effect, that as each new appellate counsel takes on the case and relieves the

previous appellate counsel, he sees a new twist and attempts to pursue that through other judicial avenues. These new twists, however, are nothing more than subsequent attorneys viewing the matter differently as to how they would have approached the matter. For the appellant to claim in his brief that he was unaware of the availability of the grounds that he now asserts is ludicrous, since he has been represented at all appellate and collateral proceedings by able counsel who certainly are trained in the law and who have viewed this record with a fine toothed comb. Further, this Honorable Court has reviewed the entire record sua sponte as it does in all capital cases and has found that the confession voluntary.

The appellant states at page thirteen of his brief that "the state may not exact a constitutional right as the price for the exercise of another constitutional right", and relies in support thereof on Simmons v. United States, 390 U.S. 377, 19 L.Ed.2d 1247, 88 S.Ct. 967 (1968). The appellee has no disagreement with that concept, but would suggest that Mr. Christopher did not have to make a hard choice sub judice, since he was able to present all of the argument that he wished to the trial court based on examination of the state's witnesses and the presentation of the tapes themselves, yet was able to shield himself from cross examination or from later use of whatever he might say for impeachment. There was no action by the state or by the court that deprived Mr. Christopher of a constitutional right or forced him to make an

improper choice.

The appellant at page fourteen of his brief states "because the right against self-incrimination is fundamental, a violation of that right may be raised for the first time in a Rule 3.850 motion, not withstanding . . . " There are two problems with this statement by the appellant. First, he was not denied his right against self-incrimination. He, in fact, exercised that right and chose not to testify. Second, the appellant obviously from this statement confuses a fundamental right with a fundamental error. While it is true that a fundamental error may be heard on appeal even though it was not contemporaneously preserved; a fundamental right is an entirely different matter. A constitutional right does not necessarily constitute fundamental error. No academic discussion of these concepts, however, is necessary since in the matter sub judice, the facts control, and there was neither fundamental error nor constitutional error.

At page fifteen, sixteen and seventeen of his brief, the appellant argues that this matter is analogous to a Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure, Rule 9(b). The appellee will argue that these cases have only persuasive value at most with this Honorable Court and certainly do not constitute mandatory authority when this Honorable Court is considering whether the trial court abused its discretion in applying the state law. Further, the propositions for which these federal cases stand are not at all repugnant to the ruling of the trial court in

the matter sub judice. These cases relied upon by the appellant hold that the abuse of writ doctrine is to be invoked in unusual circumstances and is to be of a limited application. The appellee has no disagreement with that concept, but would argue that after one reviews the judicial history of the Christopher case, this further 3.850 motion falls within that category. In addition to two jury trials, Mr. Christopher has had every aspect of his case reviewed and re-reviewed, both on direct appeal and collaterally, by both the state courts and the Federal District Court for the Southern District of Miami.

The appellant at page eighteen and nineteen of his brief states that the death penalty has a unique status and therefore, special scrutiny is required. He relies on the cases of Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349 (1977); Locket v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978); Bell v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 637 (1978); Coker v. Georgia, 433 U.S. 584 (1977); Enmund v. Florida, 458 U.S. 782 (1982) to support this position. The appellee has no argument with those cases or with this proposition, but would argue that if it were not for this unique status, Mr. Christopher's case would have long since been resolved based on the doctrine of finality.

At page twenty and twenty-one of his brief, the appellant argues that the courts should not rush to judgment for the sake of finality alone. In support of this he relies on Kaplan, "Dunwody Distinguished Lecture on Law - Administering Capital Punishment" 36 <u>U.Fla.L.</u> Rev. 177, 190 (1984). Again,

the appellee has no disagreement with that article or with that proposition, but can only marvel at that statement when one reviews the judicial history of this case and the degree of scrutiny it has received. The matter has been consistently before the courts (and at some times, even though improperly, before two or three courts simultaneously) in the many years since the crime was originally committed. Certainly no rush to judgment is evident.

At page twenty-two of his brief, the appellant states, "Mr. Christopher has not to date been allowed to present his testimony regarding the circumstances of his confession". This statement is clearly untrue. Mr. Christopher had the opportunity to present his testimony both at the suppression hearing and at the trial, but chose not to. The appellant, through new counsel, now argues that this was not a wise choice, yet the fact remains that it was a tactical choice and that tactical choice would not constitute ineffective assistance of counsel lest it was done "irresponsibly" See State v. Eby, supra.

At a later portion of this brief, the appellee will address in more detail the shortcomings of the appellant's argument concerning what constitutes ineffective assistance of counsel.

At page twenty-three of his brief, the appellant states,
"The only remaining procedural bars to the consideration of
the instant ineffective counsel claims are those contained in

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